



BlackBerry AtHoc Localization

7.19

2023-12-06Z

Contents

Overview	
Organization locales	5
Supported organization locales	
Identify an organization locale/language	
Change the default organization locale settings	
Impact of localization on the operator user interface	6
Delivery locales	
Supported delivery locales	
Set delivery locales for an organization	
Select a delivery locale for an alert	
Bilingual alerts	14
Supported characters	15
Localized and non-localized pages in BlackBerry AtHoc	17
BlackBerry AtHoc Customer Support Portal	19
Documentation feedback	20
Legal notice	

Overview

A locale is a specific dialect of a language spoken in a region such as Canadian French, Mexican Spanish, and US English. Localization is the process of customizing an application for a given language and region. This document describes how BlackBerry[®] AtHoc[®] has been localized to accommodate users with locales beyond US English.

Within the BlackBerry AtHoc system, *Organization* locales define the way the user interface appears to operators, while *Delivery* locales define the way BlackBerry AtHoc alerts appear to alert recipients. Although an organization can be associated with only one organization locale, it can be associated with multiple delivery locales. For more information, see Set delivery locales for an organization.

This document lists the organization locales supported by the BlackBerry AtHoc system and explains the process by which the system determines a user's locale and the impact of localization on the operator user interface. This document describes how to set delivery locales for an organization and how to specify a delivery locale when creating an alert. The characters supported in the system and a list of the localized and non-localized pages in the BlackBerry AtHoc system is also included.

Organization locales

Organization locales define the way the user interface appears to operators. In addition to determining the language to be displayed on BlackBerry AtHoc screens, the organization locale determines the language of the default templates available to operators. These templates include the default date, time, and phone number formats displayed in the user interface.

Supported organization locales

Each organization created within the BlackBerry AtHoc system is associated with *one* of the following language/ locale combinations. This combination cannot be changed after it has been set.

- Dutch (Netherlands)
- English (UK)
- English (US)
- French (Canada)
- French (France)
- German (Germany)
- Italian (Italy)
- Spanish (Mexico)
- Spanish (Spain)

Organizations created at the enterprise level within the same system can have different language/locale combinations associated with them. For example, an organization set to Spanish (Spain) can exist in the same system as an organization set to French (Canada), as long as neither one is a suborganization of the other.

All organizations created as suborganizations of an enterprise organization are automatically assigned to the same language/locale combination as the enterprise organization. For example, if an enterprise is set to the Spanish (Spain) language/locale, then its suborganizations are also set to Spanish (Spain.)

In a super enterprise organization, all sub enterprise organizations and their suborganizations are automatically assigned to the same language/locale combination as the super enterprise organization.

All text in the operator user interface is locked to the selected locale, so all operators within the same organization see the same language displayed throughout the BlackBerry AtHoc system.

Identify an organization locale/language

When you access the BlackBerry AtHoc system login screen for the first time, the system does not know what organization you belong to or what language you will be viewing the system in. The system decides which language to display on the Log In screen by running through the following series of checks:

- 1. The system searches for any language-related cookies in your browser from past log ins. If you have never logged in before, the system cannot make a determination about the language to display, so it proceeds to the next check.
- 2. The system tries to use the browser's preferred locale information to determine the language to display. If the preferred language is not supported within BlackBerry AtHoc or if there is no browser preferred locale information, the system proceeds to the next check.
- 3. In the absence of any language preference indicators, the system displays US English by default.

The bottom of the Log In page contains a language selection link that enables you to switch the language displayed on the Log In, Forgot Username, and Forgot Password screens.



Regardless of the language that you select from the drop-down menu, when you successfully log in to the system, the language that is displayed will match the language associated with your organization. If you set the Log In screen to display UK English, but your organization is associated with US English, you will see UK English before you log in and US English after you log in.

Change the default organization locale settings

Operators with the necessary permissions can change the default organization locale settings for their organization.

- 1. Log in to the BlackBerry AtHoc system.
- 2. In the top navigation bar, click 🖾
- 3. In the Basic section, click General Settings.
- 4. On the General Settings screen, scroll down to the Locale Setting section.
- 5. Select the default value for the following lists:
 - Date Format
 - Time Format
 - Delivery Locales
 - Time Zone
- 6. Optionally, in the Phone Call Setting section, change the value in the Default Country Code field.
- 7. Click Save.

Impact of localization on the operator user interface

The language/locale that is selected affects the following features and components of the operator user interface:

• Operator facing pages, excluding some administrative pages. The image below shows the BlackBerry AtHoc Homepage localized for the Italian (Italy) locale.

0	Avvisi	Utenti	Organizzazioni			() ITALIA	NNO (I (57) 🌣 🕄 Admin User 〜
		Il tuo me	ssaggio di benvenuto va qui. l	Fino a 500 car	atteri.			Aggiornato 07/10/2016 22:41:37
▼Avvisi	in corso (0))				Avvisi inv	iati »	Collegamenti rapidi Pubblica avviso
Titolo a	ivviso		Ora pubblicata *	Individ	Inviato	Risposto		Gestisci utenti
			Non ci sono avvisi in con	so.			^	Connetti a organizzazioni
								🔵 Il sistema è integro
							~	O Utenti abilitati O Utenti app mobile
🕶 Pubbli	cazione rap	oida			Vedi tutti i r	modelli di avv	iso »	0 Utenti senza dispositivo
Sarà pos	sibile conferm	are prima di	pubblicare l'avviso.		Cro	ea un avviso v	uoto	
Pronto	per la pubbl	Nome mo	dello avviso 🔺					

For a list of the screens that are localized, see Localized and non-localized pages in BlackBerry AtHoc.

• Out of the box default content, including alert templates, distribution lists, user attributes, and delivery templates. The following image shows the Target Users section of an out-of-the-box alert template localized for the Dutch (Netherlands) locale.

Alarmmelding publiceren gebaseerd op A	Alle gebru 🔘 Annuleren Opslaan als c	oncept Bekijken en publiceren 🔵				
- Richten aan gebruikers (0 gebru	ilkers)	•				
Groep	Via uitgebreide opdracht	Wissen				
Gebruikers	Er moet aan alle voorwaarden worden voldaan. U kunt in bepaalde omstandigheden meerdere waarden invoeren en deze scheiden met een komma. In dit geval voldoen alle					
Locatie	waarden aan de voorwaarde. Voorwaarde toevoegen					
Via uitgebreide opdracht						

Note: Custom user attributes are not translated by default. Operators with administrator permissions can provide translations for custom attributes in **Settings > Translate Custom Attributes**.

•

Date/time default formats. The following image shows the User Details screen localized for the Dutch (Netherlands) locale, with the date and time information presented in the format most commonly used in the Netherlands.

Basisgegevens		Wachtwoord		Bewerk
Gebruikersnaam	athocadmin	Huidig wachtwoord:		
ID van de koppeling	athocadmin	Voor het laatst	19-02-2015 12:04:05	
Voornaam	Admin	gewijzigd op		
Achternaam	User			
Weergavenaam	Admin User			
Gemaakt op	01-04-2014 02:00:39	AtHoc-apps		
Organisatiehiërarchie	/			
Gebruikers-ID	1	Bureaubladtoepassing	Niet beschikbaar	

- The default Date, Time, and Time Zone values for a locale can be overwritten by modifying the corresponding fields on the Settings screen. See Change the default organization locale settings for more information.
- Phone default formats. The following image shows the out-of-the-box settings for phone numbers on the New User screen, localized for UK English. The British flag icons in each field indicate that all numbers will be automatically prefaced with the British country code 44.

Users > New User		Cancel Save	
Numbers			
Phone - Emergency	ext		
Phone - Home	ext		
Phone - Work	ext		
Phone - Mobile	Enter your mobile phone number		

The default country code for a locale can be overwritten by modifying the corresponding field on the Settings screen. See Change the default organization locale settings for more information.

• The Self Service experience. The following image shows the User Profile screen in Self Service, localized for the Spanish (Mexico) locale.

Buzón Mi perfi	n.		⊘ DENBAV (2068168) ♥	Test Test ∨
Mi perfil			Cancelar	Guardar
Información básica		Contraseña		Editar
Nombre Fran	ncisco	Contraseña actual Modificado por última	 09/10/2016 21:38:59	
Apellido Oliv	rera	vez		
Nombre de pantalla foliv	vera			
Nombre de usuario * folive		Aplicaciones de AtH	oc	
ID de usuario 2068	197	Aplicación de celular	No disponible	
Direcciones en línea		Direcciones físicas		
Correo-e - Trabajo foliv	vera@sjcs.com	Ubicación del trabajo	Ingrese un domicilio, ciudad, código postal o latitud, longitud	

Note: The locale that the user selects can be different than the default locale of their organization.

٠

The system tray menu for connected desktop applications. The following image shows the menu localized for the French (France) locale.

Vérifier les nouvelles alertes Faire disparaître toutes les fenêtres contextuelles	
Accéder au Self Service	
Mettre à jour mes infos	
Mettre à jour les infos de mon appareil	
À propos	9:28 AM

• Desktop alerts. The following image shows a desktop alert localized for the French (France) locale.

Avertissement de tempêt e hivernale dans le centr				
Gravité: Élevée Type : Météo				
Tempête hivernale pour apporter la neige lourde et les vents soufflant s montagnes.	sur les			
Des périodes de forte neige devraient être enregistrées tard ce soir sur les montagnes du comté de Shasta et les cascades du sud avec de la neige sur la Sierra septentrionale vendredi matin. ▼ <u>Plus d'informations</u>				
Répondez en tapant l'une des options suivantes:	~			
Répondre et fermer				
Publié le: 12/22/2016 17:36:04 par: Dan Somrack Publié depuis: AtHoc Corp	AtHoc [®]			

Mobile alerts. For the mobile phone app, the app locale is based on the operating system settings of the phone. If you change your operating system settings, the app displays in the language of your phone, regardless of the delivery locale of a single alert or your organization's settings. The following image shows the same alert as the desktop alert above, but displayed on a mobile phone with its operating system set to French (Canada).

٠



Delivery locales

Delivery locales define the way alerts appear to alert recipients. In addition to localizing the delivery envelope of an alert—the hard-coded text in the alert, such as the Severity, Type, Response Options titles, and the Copyright information—the delivery locale is used by the text-to-speech engine to determine how to pronounce the alert content when it is read aloud by the system.

For the mobile phone app, the app locale is based on the operating system settings of the phone. If you change your operating system settings, the app will display in the language of your phone, regardless of the delivery locale of a single alert or your organization's settings.

If the Bilingual Alerts feature is enabled, the enabled delivery locales can be used to send an alert in a second, translated language. When an operator selects a second language to send an alert in, users who have selected that language as their preferred language receive the alert in that language. For more information, see Bilingual alerts.

Supported delivery locales

The BlackBerry AtHoc system supports the following delivery locales:

- Arabic (ىبرع)
- Chinese (中國語)
- Deutsch (Deutschland)
- English (UK)
- English (US)
- Español (España)
- Español (México)
- Français (Canada)
- Français (France)
- Greek (Ελληνικά)
- Italiano (Italia)
- Japanese (日本語)
- Korean (한국어)
- Nederlands (Nederland)
- Polish (Polskie)
- Portugues (Brasil)
- Russian (Русский)
- Swedish (Svenska)
- Turkish (Türkçe)

Set delivery locales for an organization

Administrators with the necessary permissions can set the delivery locales for their organization.

- 1. Log in to the BlackBerry AtHoc management system.
- 2. In the top navigation bar, click
- 3. In the Basic section, click General Settings.
- 4. On the General Settings screen, scroll down to the Locale Setting section.

5. In the **Delivery Locales** field, select the delivery locales from the list that you want to make available to alert creators within your organization.

Note: Once enabled, support for a delivery locale cannot be disabled.

6. Click Save.

Select a delivery locale for an alert

During the creation of an alert, an operator can specify a delivery locale that is different from the organization locale. Only one delivery locale can be associated with an alert, so if you need to send an alert in multiple languages, you must create separate alerts for each language.

- 1. Log in to the BlackBerry AtHoc management system.
- 2. Click Alerts > New Alert.
- 3. On the Select from Alert Templates screen, select an alert template or click Create a Blank Alert.
- 4. On the New Alert screen, in the Content section, click the language button and select the delivery locale that you want to use for the alert.

Note: Changing the delivery locale of an alert has no impact on the language displayed in the user interface. The organization locale, which cannot be changed, controls the display language of the fields within the BlackBerry AtHoc system.

- 5. Create the alert, entering text written in the language that matches the delivery locale.
- 6. Publish the alert.

Alert recipients then receive an alert that is fully localized. The operator-provided content and the delivery template—the field names and preset, unchangeable content—match the delivery locale. If a text-to-speech engine is used to listen to the alert, all preset and operator-provided content is read aloud in the language of the delivery locale.

Bilingual alerts

The Bilingual Alerts feature enables operators to select a second language to send an alert to end users. End users can choose their preferred language to receive alerts in from the BlackBerry AtHoc management system, Self Service, API, or from the mobile app.

A System Administrator must enable the IsBilingualAlertSupport feature in **Settings** > **System Setup** > **Feature Enablement**. Delivery locales must be selected in **Settings** > **General Settings**.

The alert template used to send a bilingual alert must have the Add Bilingual option enabled in the alert template settings.

At least one response option must be selected.

The bilingual alert can be enabled and a second language selected by an administrator when creating an alert template, or by an operator when sending an alert. The Add Bilingual option is available in the Content section of the alert. The quick edit feature is available for the translation on the Review and Publish page when publishing an alert.

Supported characters

The BlackBerry AtHoc system supports Windows-1252, a set of characters that includes all of the characters that are required for the languages currently supported in the system.

Some of the key fields for alerting support the Unicode character set, which is much larger than Windows-1252. This is important because it enables users to create alerts that have delivery locales that are different from the organization locale. For more information, see Select a delivery locale for an alert.

The following table defines which fields in BlackBerry AtHoc allow which characters.

Text fields or components	Allowed characters	Notes				
User profile fields						
Username	Supported alpha-numeric characters	Avoid spaces and these characters []:; =,+*?<>				
All fields on General Settings page: Name, Organization Code, Name on User Pages, Homepage Welcome Message, Footer Text	Supported alpha-numeric characters	Avoid special characters in general. ` ! \$ % ^ () = { } , ; : ? " < >				
Friendly Name for User Attributes	Supported alpha-numeric characters	Avoid special characters such as `!\$%^()={}.;;\:?"<> [] &. Although the UX supports Unicode, it will break other flows like import, and API user sync.				
Friendly Name for Device	Supported alpha-numeric characters	Avoid special characters such as `! \$%^()={},;\:?"<>				
Common Name: Devices, User Attributes, User Attribute Values	Supported alpha-numeric characters	Avoid special characters such as `! \$%^()={}.,;\:?"<> []&				
Values: Device Values, User Attribute Values, Organization Hierarchy	Supported alpha-numeric characters	Keep the values for attributes to supported characters. Special characters create problems when searching for or targeting users. The "&" special character is supported.				
XML Layouts: Self Service, User Detailed Layout including Section names, Page Details, help sections	Supported alpha-numeric characters	Use XML escaping for characters for < > & ' and ". The system will show error messages if these are typed in directly.				
Import and Export Users with CSV	Supported alpha-numeric characters					
	Alerting					
Alert Title, Alert Body	Unicode support	_				

Text fields or components	Allowed characters	Notes
Response Options	Unicode support	-

The following alphanumeric characters are supported:

0123456789ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZabcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆÇÈÉÊËÌÍĨĨÐÑÒÓÔÕÖØÙÚÛÜÝÞß àáâãäåæçèéêëìíĩiðñòóôõöøùúûüýþÿŒœŠšŸŽžf

Localized and non-localized pages in BlackBerry AtHoc

Localized

- Home page
- New Alert page
- Alert templates
- · Delivery templates
- Audio files
- Incoming alert rules
- Connect profile
- Security policy
- Invite organization to Connect
- Invitations
- Inbox
- · Sent alerts and alert reports
- User manager
- External operator manager
- Distribution list manager
- Connected organizations
- User attributes
- Alert folders
- General settings
- Alert placeholders
- Change organization
- My Details
- Disable and Delete End Users
- Operator audit trail
- Organizations manager
- Organization settings
- Activity log
- Desktop App menu

Not localized

- Mobile alert settings
- Map and layers
- Global system health
- · System health
- Diagnostic log
- Archive
- Device manager
- Alert Usage Summary report
- User Summary report
- Personnel reports
- Help & Support page
- Integration manager

- Mass devices manager
- AtHoc Cloud Delivery gateway
- AtHoc Connect gateway
- Other gateways
- Advanced Alert reports
- Online help

BlackBerry AtHoc Customer Support Portal

BlackBerry AtHoc customers can obtain more information about BlackBerry AtHoc products or get answers to questions about their BlackBerry AtHoc systems through the Customer Support Portal:

https://www.blackberry.com/us/en/support/enterpriseapps/athoc

The BlackBerry AtHoc Customer Support Portal also provides support via computer-based training, operator checklists, best practice resources, reference manuals, and user guides.

Documentation feedback

The BlackBerry AtHoc documentation team strives to provide accurate, useful, and up-to-date technical documentation. If you have any feedback or comments about BlackBerry AtHoc documentation, email athocdocfeedback@blackberry.com. Please include the name and version number of the document in your email.

To view additional BlackBerry AtHoc documentation, visit https://docs.blackberry.com/en/id-comm-collab/ blackberry-athoc. To view the BlackBerry AtHoc Quick Action Guides, see https://docs.blackberry.com/en/idcomm-collab/blackberry-athoc/Quick-action-guides/latest.

For more information about BlackBerry AtHoc products or if you need answers to questions about your BlackBerry AtHoc system, visit the Customer Support Portal at https://www.blackberry.com/us/en/support/enterpriseapps/athoc.

Legal notice

©2023 BlackBerry Limited. Trademarks, including but not limited to BLACKBERRY, BBM, BES, EMBLEM Design, ATHOC, CYLANCE and SECUSMART are the trademarks or registered trademarks of BlackBerry Limited, its subsidiaries and/or affiliates, used under license, and the exclusive rights to such trademarks are expressly reserved. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Patents, as applicable, identified at: www.blackberry.com/patents.

This documentation including all documentation incorporated by reference herein such as documentation provided or made available on the BlackBerry website provided or made accessible "AS IS" and "AS AVAILABLE" and without condition, endorsement, guarantee, representation, or warranty of any kind by BlackBerry Limited and its affiliated companies ("BlackBerry") and BlackBerry assumes no responsibility for any typographical, technical, or other inaccuracies, errors, or omissions in this documentation. In order to protect BlackBerry proprietary and confidential information and/or trade secrets, this documentation may describe some aspects of BlackBerry technology in generalized terms. BlackBerry reserves the right to periodically change information that is contained in this documentation; however, BlackBerry makes no commitment to provide any such changes, updates, enhancements, or other additions to this documentation to you in a timely manner or at all.

This documentation might contain references to third-party sources of information, hardware or software, products or services including components and content such as content protected by copyright and/or third-party websites (collectively the "Third Party Products and Services"). BlackBerry does not control, and is not responsible for, any Third Party Products and Services including, without limitation the content, accuracy, copyright compliance, compatibility, performance, trustworthiness, legality, decency, links, or any other aspect of Third Party Products and Services. The inclusion of a reference to Third Party Products and Services in this documentation does not imply endorsement by BlackBerry of the Third Party Products and Services or the third party in any way.

EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT SPECIFICALLY PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW IN YOUR JURISDICTION, ALL CONDITIONS, ENDORSEMENTS, GUARANTEES, REPRESENTATIONS, OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY CONDITIONS, ENDORSEMENTS, GUARANTEES, REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF DURABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, SATISFACTORY QUALITY, OR TITLE, OR ARISING FROM A STATUTE OR CUSTOM OR A COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE, OR RELATED TO THE DOCUMENTATION OR ITS USE, OR PERFORMANCE OR NON-PERFORMANCE OF ANY SOFTWARE, HARDWARE, SERVICE, OR ANY THIRD PARTY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES REFERENCED HEREIN, ARE HEREBY EXCLUDED. YOU MAY ALSO HAVE OTHER RIGHTS THAT VARY BY STATE OR PROVINCE. SOME JURISDICTIONS MAY NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF IMPLIED WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE DOCUMENTATION TO THE EXTENT THEY CANNOT BE EXCLUDED AS SET OUT ABOVE, BUT CAN BE LIMITED, ARE HEREBY LIMITED TO NINETY (90) DAYS FROM THE DATE YOU FIRST ACQUIRED THE DOCUMENTATION OR THE ITEM THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THE CLAIM.

TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW IN YOUR JURISDICTION, IN NO EVENT SHALL BLACKBERRY BE LIABLE FOR ANY TYPE OF DAMAGES RELATED TO THIS DOCUMENTATION OR ITS USE, OR PERFORMANCE OR NON-PERFORMANCE OF ANY SOFTWARE, HARDWARE, SERVICE, OR ANY THIRD PARTY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES REFERENCED HEREIN INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY OF THE FOLLOWING DAMAGES: DIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, OR AGGRAVATED DAMAGES, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF PROFITS OR REVENUES, FAILURE TO REALIZE ANY EXPECTED SAVINGS, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF BUSINESS INFORMATION, LOSS OF BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY, OR CORRUPTION OR LOSS OF DATA, FAILURES TO TRANSMIT OR RECEIVE ANY DATA, PROBLEMS ASSOCIATED WITH ANY APPLICATIONS USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH BLACKBERRY PRODUCTS OR SERVICES, DOWNTIME COSTS, LOSS OF THE USE OF BLACKBERRY PRODUCTS OR SERVICES OR ANY PORTION THEREOF OR OF ANY AIRTIME SERVICES, COST OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, COSTS OF COVER, FACILITIES OR SERVICES, COST OF CAPITAL, OR OTHER SIMILAR PECUNIARY LOSSES, WHETHER OR NOT SUCH DAMAGES WERE FORESEEN OR UNFORESEEN, AND EVEN IF BLACKBERRY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW IN YOUR JURISDICTION, BLACKBERRY SHALL HAVE NO OTHER OBLIGATION, DUTY, OR LIABILITY WHATSOEVER IN CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHERWISE TO YOU INCLUDING ANY LIABILITY FOR NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY.

THE LIMITATIONS, EXCLUSIONS, AND DISCLAIMERS HEREIN SHALL APPLY: (A) IRRESPECTIVE OF THE NATURE OF THE CAUSE OF ACTION, DEMAND, OR ACTION BY YOU INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BREACH OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY AND SHALL SURVIVE A FUNDAMENTAL BREACH OR BREACHES OR THE FAILURE OF THE ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR OF ANY REMEDY CONTAINED HEREIN; AND (B) TO BLACKBERRY AND ITS AFFILIATED COMPANIES, THEIR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, AGENTS, SUPPLIERS (INCLUDING AIRTIME SERVICE PROVIDERS), AUTHORIZED BLACKBERRY DISTRIBUTORS (ALSO INCLUDING AIRTIME SERVICE PROVIDERS) AND THEIR RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, AND INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.

IN ADDITION TO THE LIMITATIONS AND EXCLUSIONS SET OUT ABOVE, IN NO EVENT SHALL ANY DIRECTOR, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, DISTRIBUTOR, SUPPLIER, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR OF BLACKBERRY OR ANY AFFILIATES OF BLACKBERRY HAVE ANY LIABILITY ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THE DOCUMENTATION.

Prior to subscribing for, installing, or using any Third Party Products and Services, it is your responsibility to ensure that your airtime service provider has agreed to support all of their features. Some airtime service providers might not offer Internet browsing functionality with a subscription to the BlackBerry[®] Internet Service. Check with your service provider for availability, roaming arrangements, service plans and features. Installation or use of Third Party Products and Services with BlackBerry's products and services may require one or more patent, trademark, copyright, or other licenses in order to avoid infringement or violation of third party rights. You are solely responsible for determining whether to use Third Party Products and Services and if any third party licenses are required to do so. If required you are responsible for acquiring them. You should not install or use Third Party Products and Services until all necessary licenses have been acquired. Any Third Party Products and Services and are provided "AS IS" with no express or implied conditions, endorsements, guarantees, representations, or warranties of any kind by BlackBerry and BlackBerry assumes no liability whatsoever, in relation thereto. Your use of Third Party Products and Services shall be governed by and subject to you agreeing to the terms of separate licenses and other agreements applicable thereto with third parties, except to the extent expressly covered by a license or other agreement with BlackBerry.

The terms of use of any BlackBerry product or service are set out in a separate license or other agreement with BlackBerry applicable thereto. NOTHING IN THIS DOCUMENTATION IS INTENDED TO SUPERSEDE ANY EXPRESS WRITTEN AGREEMENTS OR WARRANTIES PROVIDED BY BLACKBERRY FOR PORTIONS OF ANY BLACKBERRY PRODUCT OR SERVICE OTHER THAN THIS DOCUMENTATION.

BlackBerry Enterprise Software incorporates certain third-party software. The license and copyright information associated with this software is available at http://worldwide.blackberry.com/legal/thirdpartysoftware.jsp.

BlackBerry Limited 2200 University Avenue East Waterloo, Ontario Canada N2K 0A7

BlackBerry UK Limited Ground Floor, The Pearce Building, West Street, Maidenhead, Berkshire SL6 1RL United Kingdom

Published in Canada